

Council Minutes

Washington, D.C.

15 April 2000

Abstract

The Council of the Society met at 7:00 p.m. on Saturday, 15 April 2000, at the Governor's House Hotel in Washington, D.C. These are the minutes for the meeting. Several items were discussed in Executive Session, and they are reported in these open minutes.

Contents

MINU'	TES	
1. Cal	l to Order	3
1.1	_	(
	ening of the Meeting and Introductions	3
1.2		
2. Mii	nutes of Previous Meetings	3
2.1	Minutes of the January 2000 Council	
2.2		
	2.2.1 Election to the Executive Committee	
	2.2.2 Election as the Council Representative to the Joint Policy	
	Board on Mathematics	4
	2.2.3 Resolution on Open Science and Security	
	nsent Agenda	
	ports of Boards and Standing Committees	
4.1	·	
	4.1.1 Vice President	
	4.1.2 Members at Large of the Council	
	4.1.3 Board of Trustees	
4.2		
	4.2.1 Colloquium Editorial Committee	
	4.2.2 Mathematical Reviews Editorial Committee	
	4.2.3 Notices Editorial Board	
4.3	AMS-ASA-AWM-IMS-MAA-NCTM-SIAM Joint Committee on Women	0
4.3		6
4.4	in the Mathematical Sciences (JCW)	
4.4	Report from the Committee on Science Policy	
4.5	Report from the Committee on Professional Ethics	
4.6	Report from the Arnold Ross Lecture Committee	
4.7	Report from the Short Course Subcommittee	
4.8	Report from an AMS Representative to AAAS	7
4.9	Report from the AMS-MAA Committee on Teaching Assistants and	_
	Part-time Instructors	
	l Business	
5.1	Individual Member Dues for 2000	
	w Business	
6.1	Levi L. Conant Prize Selection Committee	
6.2	Proceedings of Symposia in Applied Mathematics Editorial Committee	
6.3.		
6.4	Report of the Executive Director	9
. Anı	nouncements, Information and Record	9
7.1	Centennial Fellowships	
7.2	Future Meetings of Mathematical Organizations	9
R Adi	iournment	9

1.	2000 AMS Council and Board of Trustees	10
	Minutes of Business by Mail (March 16)	
3.	Minutes of Business by Mail (March 20).	13
	Background Report on Individual Dues and Memberships	
	Calendar of Future Meetings of Mathematical Organizations	

I MINUTES

1. Call to Order

1.1._ Opening of the Meeting and Introductions

President Browder, who presided throughout, called the meeting to order at 7:00PM (EDT). Members and guests were introduced. Members present were Patricia Bauman, William Beckner, Felix E. Browder, Robert J. Daverman, Robert M. Fossum, Martin Golubitsky, Jane M. Hawkins, Karen H. Parshall, Joel H. Spencer, Michael Starbird, Lisa M. Traynor, and Karen Vogtmann.

Also attending were Joseph P. Brennan, William Browder (Nominating Committee), John Ewing (Executive Director), Andy Magid (Board of Trustees), Sam Rankin (Associate Executive Director), and Sandra Golden (Assistant to the Secretary).

The current membership of the Council, as of the April 2000 Council meeting, is listed in Attachment A.

1.2. 1999 Elections

The Society conducted its annual elections in the fall of 1999. Those elected took office on February 1, 2000, and the newly elected members of the Council are:

President Elect Vice President Members at Large Hyman Bass David Eisenbud Patricia Bauman William Fulton Martin Golubitsky Jonathan M. Rosenberg Lisa Traynor

In addition, William Beckner and Carlos E. Kenig have joined the Council. They serve as representatives from the Transactions and Memoirs Editorial Committee and the Journal of the AMS Editorial Committee, respectively.

2. Minutes of Previous Meetings

2.1. Minutes of the January 2000 Council

The minutes of the January 2000 Council were distributed by mail prior to the meeting and were available on the web. The minutes were approved as distributed.

2.2. Minutes of Business by Mail

The Council conducted business by mail since the last meeting, electing a member to its Executive Committee, approving an appointment to an Editorial Committee, and endorsing a Statement on Open Science and Society so as "to speak in the name of the Society." Minutes for this business, which are included here as Attachments B and C, were approved as written. Here is a summary of actions taken.

2.2.1. Election to the Executive Committee

Robert L. Bryant, Member at Large, was elected to the Executive Committee for a four year term beginning 16 March 2000. The term will end when a new member is elected to replace him, and that election will occur in February 2004.

2.2.2. Election as the Council Representative to the Joint Policy Board on Mathematics (JPBM)

Donald G. Saari, Member at Large, was elected as Council representative to JPBM for a two year term beginning 16 March 2000. Again, the term will end when a new representative is elected to replace him, and that election will occur in February 2002.

2.2.3. Resolution on Open Science and Security

The Council voted approval of the following so as to speak in the name of the Society.

Resolution on Open Science and Security

The AMS is deeply concerned about the consequences of potentially inappropriate restrictions on foreigners, particularly at national laboratories. Such restrictions could harm U.S. national interests by impeding scientific progress, could weaken the nation's role as a key player in the international scientific community, and could endanger international cooperative activities that bolster our national security and well-being. At the same time, the AMS clearly recognizes the importance of protecting U.S. national security interests from foreign espionage.

A 1995 report from the Academies' National Research Council, "A Review of the Department of Energy Classification Policy and Practice," urged DOE to adopt the following principle: "Construct high fences around narrow areas." That is, it recommended that the department maintain very stringent security around sharply defined and narrowly circumscribed areas, but reduce or eliminate classification around areas of lesser sensitivity. The report endorsed the view that scientific openness in unclassified areas is key to the health of the scientific enterprise.

New restrictions on interactions with foreign scientists would be damaging in ways we cannot fully anticipate. DOE national laboratories necessarily engage, not only in classified military work but also in basic scientific research and educational programs, as well as technology transfer activities that stimulate scientific innovations and important new applications of technology. Over the course of many years, immigrant scientists as well as foreign visitors and students have contributed enormously to the American scientific enterprise. Any negative

characterization of scientists on the basis of ethnic or national origins is destructive to science and American values.

Therefore, the AMS endorses the use of procedures which balance the needs of science and security in accordance with the recommendations of the National Academy of Science as described in its recent report "Balancing Scientific Openness and National Security Controls at the Nation's Nuclear Weapons Laboratories."

3. Consent Agenda

There were no consent agenda items

4. Reports of Boards and Standing Committees

Items 4.1 and 4.2 were considered in Executive Session.

4.1. Nominating Committee

William Browder presented the report of the Nominating Committee concerning candidates for the election of 2000. The report itself is filed in the AMS Committee Report Book for 2000 as Report Number 000207-005.

4.1.1. Vice President

Upon the recommendation of the Nominating Committee, the Council nominated **INGRID DAUBECHIES** (Princeton University) and **M. SUSAN MONTGOMERY** (University of Southern California) as candidates for election to one post as Vice President for a term of three years, beginning 01 February 2001 and ending 31 January 2004.

4.1.2. Members at Large of the Council

The Nominating Committee recommended and the Council nominated WALTER L. CRAIG (Brown University), KEITH J. DEVLIN (Saint Mary's College), IRENE FONSECA (Carnegie Mellon University), JOEL HASS (University of California Davis), WILLIAM JAMES LEWIS (University of Nebraska), PAUL S. MUHLY (University of Iowa), ALEXANDER J. NAGEL (University of Wisconsin), IRENA PEEVA (Cornell University), LOUISE A. RAPHAEL (Howard University) and HEMA SRINIVASAN (University of Missouri) as candidates for election to the position of Members at Large of the Council (five to be elected). The term is three years, beginning 01 February 2001 and ending 31 January 2004.

4.1.3. Board of Trustees

The Nominating Committee recommended and the Council nominated **JOHN B. CONWAY** (University of Tennessee) and **DOUGLAS A. LIND** (University of Washington) as candidates for election to one position as Trustee for a period of five years beginning 01 February 2001 and ending 31 January 2006.

4.2. Editorial Boards Committee

The Editorial Boards Committee (EBC) recommended appointments to several editorial committees.

4.2.1. Colloquium Editorial Committee

The Council appointed **PETER SARNAK** (Princeton University) as a member of the Colloquium Editorial Committee for a three year term, beginning 01 February 2000 and ending 31 January 2003.

4.2.2. Mathematical Reviews Editorial Committee

The Council also appointed **HEINZ ENGL** (Institute of Industrial Mathematics, Johannes Kepler University, in Linz, Austria) as a member of the Mathematical Reviews Editorial Committee for a three year term, beginning 01 Feb 2000 and ending 31 January 2003.

4.2.3. Notices Editorial Board

Upon the suggestion of Harold Boas, Editor-Elect of the *Notices*, and the recommendation of the EBC, Council appointed **WILLIAM A. CASSELMAN** (British Columbia), **SUSAN J. FRIEDLANDER** (Illinois - Chicago), **ANDY R. MAGID** (Oklahoma), **JUDITH ROITMAN** (Kansas) and **MARK E. SAUL** (Bronxville HS) as Associate Editors on the Notices Editorial Board. Furthermore, again upon Boas's suggestion and EBC recommendation, the Council appointed **NATHANIEL DEAN** (Rice) and **LISA M. TRAYNOR** (Bryn Mawr) as Associate Editors. All these appointments are for three year terms, beginning 01 Jan 2001 and ending 31 Dec 2003.

4.3. AMS-ASA-AWM-IMS-MAA-NCTM-SIAM Joint Committee on Women in the Mathematical Sciences (JCW)

The Joint Commission on Women was founded in 1971 as an AMS Committee. At that time its charge was:

to identify and to recommend to the Council those actions which in their opinion the Society should take to alleviate some of the disadvantages that women mathematicians now experience and to document its recommendations and actions by presenting data.

At its October 1999 meeting the JCW decided to present an altered charge to better reflect the contemporary situation and to take a more positive view. They proposed, and the Secretary recommended adoption (subject to adoption by the other societies) of, the following charge:

to identify mechanisms for the enhancement of opportunities for women in the mathematical and statistical sciences, recommend actions to those societies in support of these opportunities, and document its recommendations by presenting data.

The motion to adopt the change in charge was tabled.

4.4. Report from the Committee on Science Policy

The annual report of this committee is filed in the AMS Committee Report Book for 2000 as Report Number 000115-004.

4.5. Report from the Committee on Professional Ethics

The annual report of this committee is filed in the AMS Committee Report Book for 2000 as Report Number 000110-002.

4.6. Report from the Arnold Ross Lecture Committee

The annual report of this committee is filed in the AMS Committee Report Book for 2000 as Report Number 000207-006.

4.7. Report from the Short Course Subcommittee

The annual report of this committee is filed in the AMS Committee Report Book for 2000 as Report Number 000104-001.

4.8. Report from an AMS Representative to AAAS

The annual report of this committee is filed in the AMS Committee Report Book for 2000 as Report Number 000318-007.

4.9. Report from the AMS-MAA Committee on Teaching Assistants and Part-time Instructors

The annual report of this committee is filed in the AMS Committee Report Book for 2000 as Report Number 000111-003.

5. Old Business

5.1. Individual Member Dues for 2000

According to the bylaws, the Council sets the dues with the approval of the Board of Trustees. [Article IX, Section 2, states in part: "The annual dues of an ordinary member ... shall be established by the Council with the approval of the Trustees."]

The Executive Director and the Secretary recommended to the Council that the high/low dues cutoff be increased from \$65,000 to \$75,000 for 2001. Attachment D provides an estimate of the potential impact on dues revenue of such a change. The Council recommended this increase of \$10,000 in the high/low dues cutoff for 2001 to the Board of Trustees.

6. New Business

6.1 Levi L. Conant Prize Selection Committee

At its previous meeting the Council established a new prize, the Levi L. Conant Prize, to be awarded for expository writing. Upon the recommendation of the Secretary, the Council approved the naming of a Prize Selection Committee, organized and charged as specified below, to implement the making of awards.

General Description

Type of committee: standing

Number of members: three

Term: three years

Charge: Annually make recommendations to the Executive Committee of the AMS

Council about the winner of the Levi L. Conant Prize, for the best expository paper published in the either the Notices or Bulletin of the

American Mathematical Society during the previous five years.

6.2. Proceedings of Symposia in Applied Mathematics Editorial Committee

Also upon the recommendation of the Secretary, the Council approved changing the charge of the Proceedings of Symposia in Applied Mathematics Editorial Committee to the following:

Charge:

Editorial responsibility, including the authority to accept manuscripts, for new publications in the Proceedings of Symposia in Applied Mathematics Series and for the reprinting of existing publications in the series. Liaison should be maintained with the Short Course Subcommittee of the Program Committee for National Meetings, and with the AMS-IMS-SIAM Committee of Joint Summer Research Conferences, because manuscripts may be expected to arise from short courses and/or Summer Research Conferences, and the Editorial Committee should be aware of these from inception. The committee should also seek out very high-quality older books that are appropriate for the series, and include them in the series either by reprinting the books or publishing new editions.

The change, which consists of adding liaison with the AMS-IMS-SIAM Committee on Summer Research Conferences to the charge, is parallel to that of the Proceedings of Symposia in Pure Mathematics Editorial Committee, a committee just established at the January 2000 Council Meeting.

6.3. Fan Fund Committee

At its previous meeting the Council accepted a gift from Ky and Yu-fen Fan, part of which was designated to foster collaboration between American and Chinese mathematicians. To provide structure for implementing that gift, upon the recommendation of the Secretary the Council established a committee to

oversee the distribution of funds, to be called the Fan Fund Committee, with the following general description and charge:

General description

Type of committee: standing

Number of members: three

Term: three years

Charge: to monitor the distribution of funds from the Ky and Yu-fen Fan

Endowment Fund for the support of Chinese mathematics and the promotion of cooperation between mathematicians in China and North

America.

Principal Activities:

The oversight committee may find it necessary to create review panels for evaluating proposals. The AMS committee will work directly with AMS staff to establish and to conduct such review panels.

6.4. Report of the Executive Director

The Executive Director, John H. Ewing, gave his annual report to the Council. It is filed in the AMS Committee Report Book for 2000 as Report Number 000411-008.

7. Announcements, Information and Record

7.1. Centennial Fellowships

The Centennial Fellowships Committee has announced fellowship awards to Siqi Fu (University of Wyoming), Christopher Herald (University of Nevada, Reno), Wei-Dong Ruan (Columbia University) and Vasily V. Strela (Drexel University). All have accepted. The amount of each 2000-2001 Fellowship award will be \$39,000, with an additional expense allowance of \$1600.

7.2. Future Meetings of Mathematical Organizations

See the listing of future meetings in Attachment E.

8. Adjournment

The Council adjourned at 8:50 PM (EDT).

ATTACHMENT A

2000 AMS COUNCIL

effective 4/01/2000

President	Felix E. Browder	Rutgers University	2000
President Elect	Hyman Bass	University of Michigan	2000
Vice Presidents	James G. Arthur	University of Toronto	2001
	Jennifer Tour Chayes	Microsoft	2000
	David Eisenbud	Univ. California, Berkeley	2002
Secretary	Robert J. Daverman	University of Tennessee	2000
Former Secretary	Robert M. Fossum	University of Illinois	2000
Associate Secretaries	John L. Bryant	Florida State University	2000
	Susan Friedlander	Univ. Illinois at Chicago	2001
	Bernard Russo	Univ. California, Irvine	2001
	Lesley Sibner	Polytechnic Inst. of NY	2000
Treasurer	John M. Franks	Northwestern University	2000
Associate Treasurer	B. A. Taylor	University of Michigan	2000

Representative of Committees

Bulletin Editorial Committee	Donald G. Saari, Chair	Northwestern University	2001
Colloquium Editorial Committee	Susan Friedlander, Chair	Univ. Illinois at Chicago	2001
Executive Committee	John B. Conway	University of Tennessee	2000
Executive Committee	Joel H. Spencer	NYU-Courant	2001
Executive Committee	Karen Vogtmann	Cornell University	2002
Journal of the AMS	Carlos E. Kenig	University of Chicago	2002
Math Reviews Editorial	Hugh Montgomery, Chair	University of Michigan	2001
Math Surveys & Monographs	Tudor Ratiu, Chair	Univ. California, SantaCruz	2000
Mathematics of Computation	Lars B. Wahlbin, Chair	Cornell University	2000
Proceedings Editorial	Clifford Earle, Jr., Chair	Cornell University	2000
Transactions and Memoirs	William Beckner, Chair	University of Texas	2003

Members at Large

Patricia Bauman	Purdue University	2002
Haim Brezis	University of Paris XI/Rutgers University	2001
Robert L. Bryant	Duke University	2000
Robert A. Fefferman	University of Chicago	2001
William Fulton	University of Michigan	2002
Martin Golubitsky	University of Houston	2002
Jane M. Hawkins	University of North Carolina	2000
Karen H. Parshall	University of Virginia	2000
Jonathan M. Rosenberg	University of Maryland	2002
Mary Beth Ruskai	University of Massachusetts at Lowell	2000
Donald G. Saari	Northwestern University	2001
Michael Starbird	University of Texas at Austin	2000
Tatiana Toro	University of Washington	2001
Lisa Traynor	Bryn Mawr College	2002
Nolan Wallach	University of California, San Diego	2001
Martin Golubitsky Jane M. Hawkins Karen H. Parshall Jonathan M. Rosenberg Mary Beth Ruskai Donald G. Saari Michael Starbird Tatiana Toro Lisa Traynor	University of Houston University of North Carolina University of Virginia University of Maryland University of Massachusetts at Lowell Northwestern University University of Texas at Austin University of Washington Bryn Mawr College	2002 2000 2000 2002 2000 2001 2000 2001 2002

Executive Committee

Hyman Bass	University of Michigan	ex officio
Felix Browder	Rutgers University	ex officio
Robert L. Bryant	Duke University	2003
John B. Conway	University of Tennessee	2000
Robert J. Daverman	University of Tennessee	ex officio
Joel H. Spencer	New York University	2001
Karen Vogtmann	Cornell University	2002

2000 AMS BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Roy Adler	IBM Watson Lab	2002
Felix E. Browder	Rutgers University	ex officio
Michael G. Crandall	University California, Santa Barbara	2000
John M. Franks	Northwestern University	ex officio
Eric M. Friedlander	Northwestern University	2004
Linda Keen	CUNY	2003
Andy Roy Magid	University of Oklahoma	2001
B. A. Taylor	University of Michigan	ex officio

ATTACHMENT B

MINUTES OF BUSINESS BY MAIL

AMERICAN MATHEMATICAL SOCIETY MINUTES OF THE COUNCIL BUSINESS BY MAIL March 16, 2000

In a mail ballot dated February 15, 2000, there were 27 ballots cast by Hyman Bass, Patricia Bauman, William Beckner, Robert L. Bryant, Felix E. Browder, Jennifer Tour Chayes, John B. Conway, Robert J. Daverman, Clifford J. Earle, David Eisenbud, Robert A. Fefferman, Robert M. Fossum, John M. Franks, Susan Friedlander, William Fulton, Martin Golubitsky, Andrew Odlyzko, Karen V.H. Parshall, Jonathan M. Rosenberg, Donald G. Saari, Joel H. Spencer, Michael Starbird, B.A. Taylor, Tatiana Toro, Lisa M. Traynor, Karen Vogtmann and Lars B. Wahlbin.

1. Election to the Executive Committee

In the election to the Executive Committee the result was

Robert L. Bryant 20 Karen H. Parshall 7

Accordingly, Bryant is declared elected, effective immediately, and ending when a replacement is determined in the election of February 2004.

2. Election as Council Representative to the Joint Policy Board for Mathematics (JPBM)

In the Election as the AMS Council Representative to the JPBM, the result was

Martin Golubitsky 10 Donald G. Saari 17

Accordingly, Saari is declared elected, effective immediately, and ending when a replacement is determined in the election of February 2002.

Robert J. Daverman Secretary March 16, 2000

ATTACHMENT C

MINUTES OF BUSINESS BY MAIL

AMERICAN MATHEMATICAL SOCIETY MINUTES OF THE COUNCIL BUSINESS BY MAIL March 20, 2000

A mail ballot dated 17 February 2000 presented the following statement on Open Science and Security, for possible adoption "so as to speak in the name of the Society."

Resolution on Open Science and Security

The AMS is deeply concerned about the consequences of potentially inappropriate restrictions on foreigners, particularly at national laboratories. Such restrictions could harm U.S. national interests by impeding scientific progress, could weaken the nation's role as a key player in the international scientific community, and could endanger international cooperative activities that bolster our national security and well-being. At the same time, the AMS clearly recognizes the importance of protecting U.S. national security interests from foreign espionage.

A 1995 report from the Academies' National Research Council, "A Review of the Department of Energy Classification Policy and Practice," urged DOE to adopt the following principle: "Construct high fences around narrow areas." That is, it recommended that the department maintain very stringent security around sharply defined and narrowly circumscribed areas, but reduce or eliminate classification around areas of lesser sensitivity. The report endorsed the view that scientific openness in unclassified areas is key to the health of the scientific enterprise.

New restrictions on interactions with foreign scientists would be damaging in ways we cannot fully anticipate. DOE national laboratories necessarily engage, not only in classified military work but also in basic scientific research and educational programs, as well as technology transfer activities that stimulate scientific innovations and important new applications of technology. Over the course of many years, immigrant scientists as well as foreign visitors and students have contributed enormously to the American scientific enterprise. Any negative characterization of scientists on the basis of ethnic or national origins is destructive to science and American values.

Therefore, the AMS endorses the use of procedures which balance the needs of science and security in accordance with the recommendations of the National Academy of Science as described in its recent report "Balancing Scientific Openness and National Security Controls at the Nation's Nuclear Weapons Laboratories."

Council Minutes 15 April 2000 Page 15

Ballots were received from the following: James G. Arthur, Patricia Bauman, William Beckner, John L. Bryant, Robert L. Bryant, Felix E. Browder, Jennifer Tour Chayes, John B. Conway, Robert J. Daverman, Clifford J. Earle, David Eisenbud, Robert M. Fossum, John M. Franks, Susan Friedlander, William Fulton, Martin Golubitsky, Jane Hawkins, Andrew Odlyzko, Karen V.H. Parshall, Jonathan M. Rosenberg, Mary Beth Ruskai, Donald G. Saari, Joel H. Spencer, B.A. Taylor, Tatiana Toro, Lisa M. Traynor, Karen Vogtmann and Lars B. Wahlbin.

The results of this ballot were:

Yes 27 No 1

Passage of a statement "so as to speak in the name of the Society" requires a favorable vote of two-thirds of the Council (voting) members. For this mail ballot there were 36 Council (voting) members. Accordingly, the Statement on Open Science and Security is adopted in the name of the Society.

Robert J. Daverman Secretary

March 20, 2000

ATTACHMENT D

BACKGROUND ON INDIVIDUAL DUES AND MEMBERSHIPS

To: John Ewing From: Jim Maxwell

Subject: Dues Revenue Impact of Increase in High/Low Cutoff

Date: 21 March 2000

This is an attempt to estimate the potential impact of the plan to increase the salary cutoff between Ordinary High dues and Ordinary Low dues from \$65,000 to \$75,000 for 2001.

Our experience with last year's increase (from \$55,000 to \$65,000) makes it clear that gauging the likely impact is tricky. Last March, I estimated that 1,700 ordinary members had salaries between \$55,000 and \$65,000. That estimate used the fall 1998 salary distribution of the tenured and tenure-eligible faculty at the doctorate-granting mathematics departments as a substitute for the salary distribution of our ordinary members. Yet as of March 20 of this year, only 200 Ordinary High members in 1999 switched to Ordinary Low in 2000. The final number will go up only slightly. While the salary distribution of AMS members may be skewed in some way, I don't believe that my estimate of the number of people in the affected range is different by a multiple of eight. It seems clear to me that there are other factors at work.

Given this situation, the best I can offer is a range of potential impacts for the currently proposed change. Many individuals renewing for 2000 may not have noticed the increase in the cutoff; it was not prominent on the dues renewal form. So some who were eligible to switch to Ordinary Low for 2000 almost surely will now do so for 2001. This leads me to my low-end estimate of 400 members switching. The translates into a dues reduction of \$13,600, based on the \$34 difference between 2001 Ordinary High and Low dues.

A look at the faculty salary distribution for fall 1999 leads me to my high-end estimate. Using the same approach as last year produces an estimate of 1,600 Ordinary High members making between \$65,000 and \$75,000. A switch of this size would mean a dues reduction of \$54,400.

The actual number will almost certainly fall between these two estimates, and probably closer to the low-end figure of 400 than the high-end figure of 1,600.

ATTACHMENT E

Future Meetings of Mathematical Organizations

DATE	MEETING/HOLIDAY/HOLY DAY	SITE
March 20-24, 2000	American Physical Society (APS) Meeting	Minneapolis, MN
March 24, 2000	AMS Agenda & Budget Committee (ABC) Meeting	Providence, RI
April 1-2, 2000	AMS Sectional Meeting @ Univ. of Massachusetts	Lowell, MA
April 2, 2000 April 8-9, 2000	Daylight Saving Time begins AMS Sectional Meeting	Notre Dame, IN
	@ Univ. of Notre Dame	
April 12-15, 2000	National Council of Teachers of Mathematics (NCTM) Annual Meeting	Chicago, IL
April 14-16, 2000	AMS Sectional Meeting @ Univ. of Southwestern Louisiana	Lafayette, LA
April 15, 2000	AMS Council Meeting	Washington, DC
April 16, 2000	Palm Sunday	
April 19-20, 2000	Passover	
April 21, 2000	Good Friday	
April 23, 2000	Easter	
April 26-29, 2000	Arts in Healthcare Festival AMS Providence	Providence, RI
April 28, 2000	Secretariat Meeting (evening)	Chicago, IL
April 29, 2000	AMS Committee on Meetings &	CI. H
4 320 14 2 2000	Conferences (COMC) Meeting	Chicago, IL
April 29-May 2, 2000	National Academy of Sciences	W 1: A DC
	(NAS) Annual Meeting	Washington, DC
May 5, 2000	Joint Policy Board for Mathematics (JPBM) Meeting	Washington, DC
May 6-9, 2000	Council of Scientific Society Presidents Meeting (CSSP)	Washington, DC
May 14, 2000	Mother's Day	
May 18, 2000	AMS Committee on Committees	
10.20.2000	Meeting	Ann Arbor, MI
May 19-20, 2000	AMS Executive Committee & Board	
M 20 2000	of Trustees (ECBT) Meeting	Ann Arbor, MI
May 29, 2000	Holiday - Memorial Day	D. I.
May 31-June 2, 2000	Society for Scholarly Publishing (SSP) Meeting	Baltimore, MD
June 8-11, 2000	American Association of	Washington, DC

	University Professors (AAUP) Annual Meeting	
June 10-15, 2000	Special Libraries Association (SLA) Annual Conference	Philadelphia, PA
June 13-16, 2000	International Meeting Cosponsored by Danish, Norwegia and Swedish Mathematical Societie	Odense, Denmark n,
June 18, 2000	Father's Day	
July 4, 2000 July 10-14, 2000	Holiday - Independence Day SIAM Annual Meeting	Rio Mar, Puerto Rico
July 10-14, 2000 July 10-14, 2000	Third European Congress of Mathematics	Barcelona, Spain
August 3-5, 2000	MAA Mathfest @ Univ. of California-LA	Los Angeles, CA
August 7-12, 2000	AMS Special Summer Meeting "Mathematical Challenges of the 21st Century" @ Univ. of California - LA	Los Angeles, CA
August 14, 2000		AMS RI offices closed; DC & MI open
September 4, 2000	Holiday - Labor Day	
September 9, 2000	AMS Committee on Publications (CPub) Meeting	Chicago, IL
September 16, 2000	Committee on the Profession (CoProf) Meeting	Chicago, IL
September 22-24, 2000	AMS Sectional Meeting @ University of Toronto	Toronto, Ontario CANADA
September 30- October 1, 2000	Rosh Hashanah	
October 5-7, 2000	IMU CEIC Meeting	Vienna
October 9, 2000 October 9, 2000	Yom Kippur Holiday - Columbus Day Note:	AMS RI & DC offices closed; MI office open
October 13, 2000	AMS Agenda & Budget Committee (ABC) Meeting	Providence, RI
October 14-15, 2000	Sukkot (first two days of Tabernacles)	
October 19-20, 2000	Mathematical Reviews Editorial Committee (MREC) Meeting	Ann Arbor, MI
October 21-22, 2000	AMS Sectional Meeting @ San Francisco State Univ.	San Francisco, CA

October 27-28, 2000	Committee on Education (COE) Meeting	Washington, DC
October 29, 2000	Daylight Saving Time ends	
November 4-5, 2000	AMS Sectional Meeting @ Columbia Univ.	New York, NY
November 7, 2000	Election Day	
November 9-12, 2000	AMATYC 26th Annual Conference	Chicago, IL
November 10-12, 2000	AMS Sectional Meeting @ Univ. of Alabama	Birmingham, AL
November 10, 2000	Holiday - Veterans Day Note: (Obsvd)	AMS RI & DC offices closed; MI open
November 13, 2000	Joint Policy Board for Mathematics (JPBM) Meeting	Washington, DC
November 17-18, 2000	AMS Executive Committee & Board of Trustees (ECBT) Meeting	Providence, RI
November 23-24, 2000	Holiday - Thanksgiving	110,100,000,111
December 13-17, 2000	Joint International Meeting	Hong Kong, China
December 21-22, 2000	Hanukkah	2 2
December 25, 2000	Holiday - Christmas	
January 1, 2001	Holiday - New Year's Day	
January 15, 2001	Holiday - Martin Luther Note: King Day	AMS RI & DC offices closed; MI open
January 9, 2001	AMS Council Meeting	New Orleans, LA
January 10-13, 2001	AMS-MAA Annual Meeting	New Orleans, LA
February 15-20, 2001	American Association for the Advancement of Science (AAAS) Annual Meeting	San Francisco, CA
February 27-	Council of Engineering &	Waikoloa, HI
March 3, 2001	Scientific Society Execs. (CESSE) Midewinter Meeting	
March 16-18, 2001	AMS Sectional Meeting @ Univ. of South Carolina	Columbia, SC
March 23-24, 2001 TENT	AMS Secretariat & Committee on Meetings & Conferences (COMC) Meetings	????
March 30, 2001 TENT	AMS Agenda & Budget Committee	
March 30-31, 2001	(ABC) Meeting AMS Sectional Meeting	Providence, RI Lawrence, KS
	@ Univ. of Kansas	
April 1, 2001 April 8, 2001	Daylight Savings Time Begins Palm Sunday/Passover	

April 13, 2001	Good Friday
April 15, 2001	Easter Sunday
April 20-21, 2001 TENT	AMS Council Meeting and Washington, DC
-	Committee on Science Policy
	(CSP) Meetings
April 21-22, 2001	AMS Sectional Meeting Las Vegas, NV
	@ University of Nevada
April 28-29, 2001	AMS Sectional Meeting Hoboken, NJ
	@ Stevens Institute of Tech.
May 13, 2001	Mother's Day
May 17, 2001 TENT	AMS Committee on Committees
	Meeting Providence, RI
May 18-19, 2001 TENT	AMS Executive Committee &
	Board of Trustees (ECBT)
	Meeting Providence, RI
May 28, 2001	Holiday-Memorial Day
17.0001	
June 17, 2001	Father's Day
June 30-July 14, 2001	IMO 2001 USA Meeting Washington, DC
	@ George Mason University
July 4, 2001	Holiday Indonandanaa Day
July 4, 2001 July 17-20, 2001	Holiday-Independence Day Joint AMS-SMF International Lyons, France
July 17-20, 2001	Joint AMS-SMF International Lyons, France Meeting
	Meeting
August 13, 2001	Holiday-Victory Day <i>Note</i> : AMS RI office closed;
11agust 13, 2001	DC & MI open.
September 3, 2001	Holiday-Labor Day
September 18-19, 2001	Rosh Hashanah
September 27, 2001	Yom Kippur
2 of	
October 2-3, 2001	Sukkot (first two days of Tabernacles)
October 5, 2001 TENT	AMS Agenda & Budget Committee
	(ABC) Meeting Providence, RI
October 5-6, 2001	AMS Sectional Meeting Chattanooga, TN
	@ University of Tennessee
October 8, 2001	Holiday-Columbus Day Note: AMS RI & DC offices
	closed; MI open
October 13-14, 2001	AMS Sectional Meeting Williamstown, MA
	@ Williams College
October 28, 2001	Daylight Savings Time Ends
November 6, 2001	Election Day
November 12, 2001	Holiday-Veterans' Day Note: AMS RI & DC offices
Nov. 16 17, 2001 TENT	closed; MI open
NIGHT 16 17 OUMAT THANKS	ANAN Hypopitago I committee Vr

AMS Executive Committee &

Board of Trustees (ECBT)

Nov 16-17, 2001 TENT

	Meeting	Providence, RI
November 22, 2001 November 23, 2001	Holiday-Thanksgiving Day Holiday-Day After Thanksgiving	Note: AMS DC & MI offices closed
December 10, 2001	Hanukkah	
December 24, 2001 December 25, 2001	Christmas Eve Holiday-Christmas Day	Note: AMS DC office closed
January 6-9, 2002	AMS-MAA Annual Meeting	San Diego, CA
June 16-20, 2002	Joint International Meeting w/ AMS and Unione Matematica Italiana (UMI	Pisa, Italy
August 12, 2002	Holiday-Victory Day	Note: AMS RI Office closed; DC & MI open
September 7-8, 2002	Rosh Hashanah	•
September 16, 2002 September 21-22, 2002	Yom Kippur Sukkot (first two days of Tabernacle	es)
•	•	
October 5-6, 2002	AMS Sectional Meeting @ Northeastern University	Boston, MA
November 30, 2002	Hanukkah	
January 15-18, 2003 TENTATIVE	AMS-MAA Annual Meeting	Baltimore, MD
June 2003	Joint International Meeting	TBA
(Exact dates to be determined)	AMS and Real Sociedad Matematica Espanol (RSM	E)
September 27-28, 2003	Rosh Hashanah	
October 6, 2003	Yom Kippur	
October 11-12, 2003	Sukkot (first two days of Tabernacle	es)
December 20, 2003	Hanukkah	
January 4-7, 2004 TENTATIVE	AMS-MAA Annual Meeting	Honolulu, HI
September 16-17, 2004	Rosh Hashanah	
September 25, 2004 September 30-October 1,2004	Yom Kippur Sukkot (first two days of Tabernac)	les)
•	•	,
December 9, 2004	Hanukkah	Charlette NC
January 5-8, 2005 TENTATIVE	AMS-MAA Annual Meeting	Charlotte, NC

October 4-5, 2005 Rosh Hashanah October 13, 2005 Yom Kippur

October 18-19, 2005 Sukkot (first two days of Tabernacles)

December 25, 2005 Hanukkah

January 12-15, 2006 AMS-MAA Annual Meeting San Antonio, TX

September 23-24, 2006 Rosh Hashanah

October 2, 2006 Yom Kippur

October 7-8, 2006 Sukkot (first two days of Tabernacles)

December 16, 2006 Hanukkah

September 13-14, 2007 Rosh Hashanah September 22, 2007 Yom Kippur

September 27-28, 2007 Sukkot (first two days of Tabernacles)

December 5, 2007 Hanukkah

September 30-

October 1, 2008 Rosh Hashanah

October 9, 2008 Yom Kippur

October 14-15, 2008 Sukkot (first two days of Tabernacles)

December 22, 2008 Hanukkah

September 19-20, 2009 Rosh Hashanah September 28, 2009 Yom Kippur

October 3-4, 2009 Sukkot (first two days of Tabernacles)

December 12, 2009 Hanukkah

September 9-10, 2010 Rosh Hashanah September 18, 2010 Yom Kippur

September 23-24, 2010 Sukkot (first two days of Tabernacles)

December 2, 2010 Hanukkah